ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY COW TTEE
April 8, 2002
2:05 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Robin Taylor, Chair
Senat or Dave Donl ey, Vice Chair
Senat or John Cowdery

Senat or CGene Therri aul t

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Johnny Ellis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 418(L&0)

"An Act amending the Al aska Corporations Code as it relates to
delivery of annual reports, notice of sharehol ders' neetings,
pr oxy st at enent s, and ot her i nformati on and itens to
sharehol ders, to voting, and to proxies, including electronic
proxy voting and proxy signing;, and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 204
"An Act relating to wildfires and other natural disasters.”
MOVED SB 204 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 278
"An Act requiring a good faith effort to purchase property before
that property is taken through em nent domain; and providing for
an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 278(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 357
"An Act relating to the disposal of state land and interests in
state land; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 357(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HB 418 — See Labor and Comrerce m nutes dated 3/21/02.
SB 204 - See Judiciary mnutes dated 4/30/01.
SB 278 - See Community and Regional Affairs mnutes dated

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 8, 2002



2/ 27/ 02.
SB 357 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Representative Li sa Murkowski

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 418.

M. Joe Nel son

Legal Counci |l

Seal aska Cor poration

One Seal aska Pl aza, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 418.

Ms. Vicki Kindseth

Staff to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 204.

M. Del Smth

Deputy Conm ssi oner
Department of Public Safety
PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 204.

Ms. Dean Brown

Deputy Director

Di vision of Forestry

Department of Natural Resources
400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 204.

M. Kevin Saxby

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 204.

Ms. Barbara Leiss
Pal mer, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 204.

Ms. Kim Qgni sty
Staff to Senat or John Torgerson

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- Apri |

8, 2002



Al aska State Capitol
Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 178.

M. Rick Kauzlarich

Ri ght - of - Wy Chi ef

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 178.

M. Bill Satterburg

No address given

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Was online to testify on SB 178 but was not
avai | abl e.

M. Bill Cunm ngs

Assi stant Attorney General

Transportation Section

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 178.

M. Ron Wlfe

Cor por ate Forester

Seal aska Cor poration

One Seal aska Pl aza

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 178.

M. Jon Tillinghast

| ndependent Legal Counci

Seal aska Cor poration

One Seal aska Pl aza

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 178.

M. Dick Mylius

Resource Assessment & Devel opment Manager
Di vision of Mning, Land And Water
Departnent of Natural Resources

550 W 7" Ave. Ste. 1050

Anchor age, AK 99501- 3579

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 357.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-13, SIDE A

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 8, 2002



2:05 p.m

CHAIRVAN ROBIN TAYLOR called the Senate Judiciary Conmttee
neeting to order at 2:05 p.m Present were Senators Cowdery and
Therriault and Chairman Tayl or. Senator Donley arrived at 2:47
p. m

The first order of business before the conmttee was HB 418.

#HB 418

HB 418- CORPORATE NOTI CES/ PROCEDURES/ VOTI NG

REPRESENTATI VE LI SA MJRKOWSKI, Chair of the House Labor and
Commerce Conmittee, sponsor of HB 418, said HB 418 would help
Al askan corporations wth their managemnent and busi ness
operations by allowing themto offer electronic proxy voting and
deliver materials to sharehol ders electronically. She said this
change would be simlar to corporate code changes made by 25
ot her states. She said it would allow for efficiencies such as

househol di ng of sharehol der information. She said she and her
sons received their annual notices from an out-of-state
corporation in which they were sharehol ders. She was able to

vote online for the entire famly in about a mnute and a half.
She was pronpted for a personal identification nunber and her
vote. She said a |lot of shareholders received their ballots and
put themin the pile of things to do and didn't get to themuntil
too | ate.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked who would benefit nonetarily from the
stream i ned process.

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWSKI said any Al askan corporation would
benefit, including Al aska-based banks and Native corporations.
She said HB 418 originated from Seal aska because they wanted to
provi de notices to their sharehol ders el ectronically.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any further questions for
Represent ati ve Murkowski. There were none.

MR. JCE NELSON, |egal counsel, Seal aska Corporation, said HB 418
was not a new idea and there was nothing unique in the |anguage
of the bill. He said it was nodeled after corporate codes from
across the country but <canme primarily from Delaware and
California codes and the Federal Comunications Conm ssion
gui del i nes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 8, 2002



CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said HB 418 would provide shareholders wth
convenience and should lead to increased participation by
shar ehol ders. He said Alaska had the highest rate of conputer
ownership and Internet access in the country.

He said HB 418 would provide for many opportunities to reduce
costs. For exanple Sealaska could save a l|ot of noney by
househol di ng i nfornmation. He attended a national neeting of
corporate secretaries that had a discussion panel about
househol di ng and el ectronic voting. He |earned that corporations
across the country were saving mllions of dollars by using the
met hods outlined in HB 418.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Seal aska paid anything to the State
for oversight.

MR NELSON didn’t know.

SENATOR THERRI AULT thought statutes allowed the State to charge
Native corporations a fee for the oversight provided by the
D vision of Banking, Securities & Corporations (DBSC). He did
not believe the State had been charging Native corporations. He
said HB 418 would be revenue neutral for the State but would
provide a savings to corporations. He said perhaps with this
savings it would be tinme for Native corporations to pay for
oversight like the rest of the corporations in the state.

MR. NELSON said DBSC had previously been concerned with HB 418
but those concerns related to financial inpact to the State
rather than fees paid to the State. He said Seal aska and DBSC
wor ked out those concerns. He said DBSC had testified on HB 418
and he didn't think they had any problenms with the reworked bill
He said the current fiscal note reflected no cost to the State.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked how | ong a proxy | asted.

MR. NELSON thought a proxy lasted 11 nonths unless a new proxy
was submtted. He said HB 418 wouldn’t inpact the length of
pr oxi es.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR t hought HB 418 woul d be beneficial to all parties
i nvol ved. He said there had been a lot of discussion in the
| egi sl ature about mnority shareholders who were frustrated by
the actions of managenent and wanted to have their views heard.
He thought HB 418 would nmake it easier for themto express their
vi ews because of increased ease of comrunications.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any further questions for M.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 8, 2002



Nel son. There were none. He asked if there was anybody el se who
wi shed to testify on HB 418. There was nobody. He asked if
there were any anendnents.

SENATOR CONDERY of fered the foll ow ng Arendnent 1

AMENDMENT

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO CSHB 418(L&0)

Page 5, lines 13 - 14:
Del ete "executed by electronic transm ssi on"

Page 5, line 18:
Del ete "transni ssion; and"

| nsert "proxy;"

Page 5, line 20:

Del ete "transni ssion"

I nsert " proxy, authorized an attorney-in-fact for the
sharehol der, if applicable, authorized an agent under (1) of this
subsection to receive the proxy, if applicable, and authorized an
electronic transm ssion, if applicable: and

(3) if the corporation is using corporation npney
to send out the proxy form include
(A) on the forma line for the sharehol der
to nane _an _eliqgible shareholder as the holder of the
proxy; and
(B) with the form appropriate instructions
on using the line required by (A) of this paragraph,
including an instruction that the sharehol der nmay nane
a person to hold the proxy who is not a part of the
current nanagenent of the corporation”

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the anmendnment had been di scussed with
t he sponsor of HB 418.

REPRESENTATI VE MJRKOWNSKI said she had not seen the anendnent
bef ore.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR didn’t think Amendnent 1 would change the intent
of HB 418. He said Anendnent 1 would require the corporations to
provide a formwi th the appropriate instructions so that a person
who wished to could wite in a proxy holder. He thought nost
corporations already did so.

REPRESENTATI VE MURKOWSKI agreed that was probably what Anendnent

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 8, 2002



1 would do. She asked for the source of Anendment 1.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR understood that every Native corporation already
provided a blank line to wite in proxies. However, he had heard
that Cook Inlet Region, Inc. (CIRI) didn’'t provide any such space
and threw away any proxies that were witten in. He said he
didn’t know whether that was true. He said a CI Rl sharehol der
had asked that shareholders be given the opportunity to nane
their own proxy.

MR. NELSON thought Seal aska had always provided for wite-in
proxi es. He thought it was al ready a requirenent.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if that was a requirenment of Seal aska or
the State.

MR. NELSON said Seal aska required it. He also thought it was
provided for in State regul ations.

SENATOR THERRI AULT wondered if Amendnent 1 would codify State
regul ations that CIRI m ght have been ignoring.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said that was his assunption but he couldn't

confirm that. He announced that the commttee would hear the
bill again on Wednesday to allow tinme for these questions to be
answer ed.

HB 418 was held in commttee with Anendnment 1 pendi ng.
#

The next order of business before the commttee was SB 204.
#SB 204

SB 204- W LDFI RES AND NATURAL DI SASTERS

M5. VICKI KINDSETH, Staff to Senator Lyda G een, sponsor of SB
204, said SB 204 addressed the concerns of residents during the
energency managenent of wild fires and other natural disasters.
She said SB 204 would give decision-nmaking powers to energency
per sonnel based on information at hand to all ow residents wanting
to enter an area under energency nanagenent to do so. She said
the residents would be informed of the risks and would enter at
their own risk with the responsibility of injury or death taken
by the resident. She said the provisions for the decision-mnmaking
woul d be authorized by the guidelines adopted by each comunity.

M5. KINDSETH said the crinme of unsworn falsification would be

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 8, 2002



anended to include anyone naking a false statenment of residency
in order to enter an area under energency nanagenent. | muni ty
from liability would be provided for state and nmnunicipal
governments, energency service workers and organi zations for the
injury or death of a person entering an area under energency
managemnent .

SENATOR CONDERY sai d people went to the Big Lake area during the
MIler’s Reach fire because they were concerned about famly
menbers. He asked if SB 204 would still allow themto be in the
ar ea.

M5. KINDSETH said the energency guidelines in the packets
addressed sonme of the questions Senator Cowdery raised. She
t hought that decision would be made at the scene.

2:25 p.m
Chai rman Taylor left the neeting.

MR. DEL SM TH, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Public Safety
(DPS), said Senator Cowdery’s concerns were probably the reason
SB 204 had been introduced. He said there was a confrontation
bet ween troopers and a man who wanted to check on his grandfat her
during the Lazy Mouwuntain fire near Pal ner. He recogni zed the
need to address those issues. He said people cane to an area
concerned about their parents, children, other famly nenbers,
pets or house.

He said a commttee consisting of the Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR) and other agencies that responded to wldfires
was forned after the Lazy Muntain fire. He was not directly
involved with the commttee but it was his desire to work out
sonme procedures. He said DPS was working with everyone invol ved
to come up wth a plan to address individual energency
situations. He net with Lazy Mountain citizens after the fire to
listen to their concerns. He said DPS was working to address
t hose concerns.

MR SM TH said SB 204 would all ow people to enter an area if they
were a resident of the threatened or affected area and appeared
to be capable of making a reasonable and informed decision. He
was concerned about the ability of law enforcenent officers to
make that determ nation. He said these situations involved high
enotions on the part of both law enforcenent officers and
citizens, particularly if people were concerned about their
famlies or property. H s experience was that people in
energency situations mght not renenber what they said. He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 8, 2002



didn't like putting |aw enforcenent officers in the position of
determining whether a person was able to nmake an inforned
deci si on.

He said he had never net an energency responder who would not try
to get sonmeone out of a dangerous situation. He was concerned
allowing people into an area wuld hinder the efforts of
responders who wanted to rescue them

He didn’t think putting SB 204 into statute was the proper way to
address concerns about energency nanagenent. He understood that
many people felt that agencies wouldn’'t do anything unless they
were required to by statute. But he felt that the agencies were
involved in making changes and not having anything in statute
allowed themflexibility.

He said there was also the problem of letting nonresidents into
an area under emergency managenent. He said SB 204 would all ow
the State to charge people with making fal se residency statenents
in order to get into an area. He noted that when a disaster was
| ar ge enough and went on | ong enough sone people would try to get
into the area to | oot unoccupi ed hones.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he had the sane concerns. He asked if
sonmebody who was let in would be issued a red vest or sonething
to indicate that they wished to remain in the area. He didn’t
know how SB 204 was supposed to work, especially when things in
an enmergency situation were noving quickly.

MR SMTH said there were problens with energency situations
bef ore. He believed substantial work had gone into addressing
the probl ens. He wanted nore flexibility in the future for
respondi ng | aw enforcenment officers. He said checkpoints should
be updated if a fire had noved substantially in another direction
and people should be allowed into the safe area. On the other
hand, it was dangerous for people to be in an area if a retardant
drop was needed or the fire turned and cane back. He said SB 204
woul d create substantial anobunts of potential liability for the
St at e.

SENATOR CONDERY sai d they were discussing people wanting to enter
an area. He noted that there would probably be people already in
the area before responders arrived. He said these people could
be visitors or people driving through as well as residents.

MR SMTH said that was an issue he had struggled with prior to

the MIler’'s Reach fire. As a law enforcenent officer he was
unconfortabl e saying that a person had to | eave their residence.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 8, 2002



He said there was a man who died because he wouldn't |eave his
hone in Washington during the Mount St. Hel ens eruption. He said
it was different if sonmeone wanted to go in an area to protect
his or her residence. He said those people should be given
war ni ng that there was an energency situation. He said that also
created a problem with responders trying to get people out of a
danger ous area.

SENATOR CONDERY Asked if there were any further questions for M.
Smith. There were none.

2:35 p.m

MS. DEAN BROWN, Deputy Director, Division of Forestry (DOF), DNR
wanted to testify to the steps that had already been taken to
address concerns about energency managenent. She said this was a
conplex issue in which the lives of the public and firefighters
were in danger. She said Alaska had experienced a nunber of
wi | dl and-urban interface fires and rel ated evacuations. She said
the MIler’s Reach fire wasn't the first but it was probably the
| argest and probably received the nost publicity. She said the
Lazy Mountain fire spurred SB 204. She said the bill addressed a
need that was there and was a problem for troopers and fire
fighters in responding to all high-risk energencies. She said
safety was DNR s first concern.

She said DNR worked with several organizations, including the
Di vision of Emergency Services, the Alaska State Troopers (AST)
and the Red Cross, to develop guidelines for an official working
docunent. She said a field guide was created to test evacuation
gui del i nes. DNR felt the field guide would give them an
opportunity to further refine the guidelines. She said dozens of
organi zati ons responded to huge fires such as the MIler’s Reach
fire and those organizations also had valid needs and concerns
about how an evacuation was carried out. She said they were
concerned about docunentation nmaking sure all response
organi zati ons knew who was in an area and where they were. DNR
felt the guidelines gave them a good flexible docunent to use as
a work in progress because they were going to |l earn as situations
progr essed. She said DNR was working wth various agencies
regardi ng recomrendati ons suggested after an investigation of a
fire. She said the guidelines had been created through a good
inter-agency effort and were still being revised. She said the
statute was inflexible and changes would be difficult to nmake as
t hey were needed.

2:39 p.m

Chai rman Taylor returned to the neeting.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 8, 2002



M5. BROWN said there might be several entrances into an area
under energency nanagenent, each of which would have to be manned
by a law enforcenent officer in order to control ingress. But
people with off-road vehicles could enter an area just about
anywhere. She said having unidentified people in an area created
a problem because responders needed to docunent their presence
and ensure that they had been informed of the |atest changes in
the situation

She thought this was a serious issue and comended t he sponsor of
SB 204 for putting it forth and trying to resolve it. She said
DNR worked closely with the Lazy Muntai n honeowners’ associ ation
on the guidelines. She said a nunber of very good things that
were incorporated into the guidelines cane from their
di scussi ons.

She said there were concerns from DNR and AST about the need to
protect life in wldland-urban interface fires. She said that
was a concern even when a person consented and understood the
risks of staying in an area.

She said the issue was handl ed considerably differently in other
st at es. Sonme states sinply determned that if a person entered
an area they had been told not to enter, they were conpletely on
their own. She said that created an entirely different |evel of
liability and created serious concerns. She said DNR wanted to
protect |ife and then property and their responders were
extrenmely dedi cat ed.

She said the guidelines used in evacuations were a work in
progress and inprovenents would be nmade. She said trying to
determ ne who was already there, who was passing through, and
trying to limt who could enter would create a problem for fire
fighters who should be focused on fire suppression and protecting
life and property. She said DNR would be happy to continue to
wor k on the guidelines but they needed the flexibility to inprove
t he gui del i nes.

SENATOR CONDERY asked what concerns had been expressed by people
who were not supportive of the guidelines.

M5. BROWN thought sonme people felt there shouldn't be any
restriction on who could enter an area wunder energency
managenent . She said nonresidents mght want to check on a
famly nenber in the area. She said a resident who was out of
the area mght also call a friend or famly nenber and ask them
to check on pets or children. She said those situations were
addressed in the guidelines but not in SB 204. She said sone
areas were very difficult to get into and out of, such as East
End Road in Honer. She said it was difficult to get energency
vehicles into and out of the area and additional traffic into the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 8, 2002



area could affect response efforts.

SENATOR COADERY said during the MIller’s Reach fire there were
peopl e who wanted to go in and retrieve personal effects such as
pictures and famly treasures wth the know edge that the
bui l di ng m ght burn. He said soneone could have been outside and
called their children to go get sone things.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Kevin Saxby to provide testinony.

MR. KEVIN SAXBY, Assistant Attorney General, Departnment of Law
(DAL), said there were two |legal problens with SB 204. He said
SB 204 would create a legal right for nenbers of the public to be
present in areas under energency managenent. He said these were
areas that public safety officials would have determ ned
evacuati on necessary. He said this would override the public
safety tool of evacuation and interfere wth energency
responders.

He said SB 204 would also create a legal duty for energency
responders to ensure infornmed consent by residents entering an
ar ea. He said DOL believed this would lead to increased
litigation and litigation risks.

He said Section 1 would nake fal se statenents by nenbers of the
public regarding residency illegal. He said SB 204 presuned that
energency responders would be able to nake that determ nation

He said DNR firefighters and public safety officers were
relatively ill equipped to nake those kinds of decisions on the
spur of the nonment in the field. He said a witten consent form
could be developed but that would require a higher |level of
record keeping in order to ensure and later prove that the
determ nati ons were properly nade.

MR. SAXBY said Sec. 2 would create the newrights. He said these
rights would be subject to a nunber of conditions including
resi dency determ nation. He said residency determ nation would
be wvery inportant for the State to address and prove in
litigation. He noted that SB 204 didn’'t provide for the rights
of nonresidents or famly nenbers to be in the area. It only
provided for the rights of the residents of the area.

2:47 p. m

He said SB 204 wouldn’t inmunize the State from property danage
occurring as a result of letting the wong people into an area.
He said property damage often occurred through theft or |ooting.
He said the State would have to undergo a new burden in order to
ensure that proper determ nations about residency and conpetency
wer e nade.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 8, 2002



He said requiring informed consent before allowing residents to
enter an area would carry public policy inplications simlar to
M randa warnings. He said Mranda warni ngs were often videot aped

in order to undercut as many |egal argunents as possible. He
said there could be dozens of people wanting to get into an area
during a large energency situation. He said proving that
i nformed consent was given would be difficult. He said there

woul d be people arguing that the warning wasn't given in enough
detail or wasn’'t understood or people were incapable of naking a
reasoned and i nformed deci sion because they were afraid, confused
or | acked nental capacity.

He said SB 204 would also allow people who wouldn't be
interfering wwth the responders’ efforts into an area. He noted
that the non-interference would only apply to access. He said SB
204 didn't address people interfering wth a backfire or a
retardant drop. He said there would be costly litigation about
the level of non-interference needed to override the rights
created in SB 204. He noted that the legislature could create
the rights but the courts would have to interpret the rights.

He said the immunity clause for the State would only cover the
injury or death of a person entering an area. It wouldn’t
i mmuni ze the State or the responders agai nst property damage. He
said property damage was the nost conmon damage that occurred in
energency situations. He said people would be able to tie
property damage to an evacuation decision or a faulty residency
determ nation

SENATOR CONDERY said there was a nonresident in the Mller’s
Reach fire who had rented a generator and went to the property to
wet the generator down and run the punp so water would be
avai l able. He asked if SB 204 would allow that. He acknow edged
that the person’'s right to be there would be difficult to prove
on the spot.

TAPE 02-13, SIDE B
1: 50 p. m

MR. SAXBY said it wuld be difficult to make the determ nation

He noted that SB 204 didn’t address the right of nonresidents to
enter the area. He said it was presuned that the | egislature had
| ooked at all possibilities and alternatives for State action
when they addressed a concern. He said SB 204 woul d give a right
to a certain class of people. He said it would be presuned that
the legislature didn't intend for other people to have the sane
right. He said there would be litigation and a |ot of argunent
that statute had been violated if energency responders allowed
nonresi dents into an area.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 8, 2002



SENATOR THERRI AULT said M. Saxby nentioned that the inforned
consent could be given in a witten statenent. He said he had to

sign a waiver before he went rafting at MKinl ey. He said the
wai ver was nothing nore than a speed bunp in the road of
litigation. He said people would say they were distraught

because they thought there was a famly nenber, pet or heirloom
in the area. He said M. Saxby had done a good job explaining
that there was no good way to limt the liability of the State
and a statute wasn’t necessarily enough protection.

He asked if M. Saxby was directly involved in putting together
the fiscal note.

MR SAXBY said he was. He noted that it was an indeterm nate
fiscal note.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said it would cost the State nobney but there
was no way of determ ning how nuch.

MR SAXBY said that was correct.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked if the State had been sued over any of the
recent fires.

MR. SAXBY said the State was still involved in very heavy
litigation regarding the Mller’s Reach fire.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked what that litigation alleged.

MR. SAXBY said the min point of the allegation was that
negl i gent decision-naking on the part of State personnel during
the first day or so of the response caused or exacerbated the
property damage that ensued.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if any of that litigation had been | ost.

MR. SAXBY said they had lost sone initial notion practice. He
said that was before the Suprenme Court but the case had not gone
to trial.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked for suggestions from M. Saxby on how the
| egi sl ature mght enact a |aw that would provide that people use
a level of comon sense.

MR. SAXBY asked if he was speaki ng of responders or the public.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said he was speaking of both. He said existing
|l aws inplied that responders would use sonme | evel of common sense
in determining who they allowed into an area and in the way they
dealt with wldland-urban interface fires. He said there were
obvi ously people who felt they had not done so. He said since

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 8, 2002



the responders didn't seem to do a very good job deciding who
should enter an area, SB 204 was filed to |eave those
determ nations up to the people who lived in the area and had
sonme interest in saving their own property.

He said fires weren’t the only concern. He noted that there were
areas in the state that were subjected to flood, earthquake and
tsunam . He said a flood could happen in the Knik R ver area and
a Fish & Gane officer who happened to be the only | aw enforcenent
officer wwth a boat would be deciding who could go back to their
farm and try to save their cows or who could go back to their
house to save their dog.

He asked for suggestions on how to better tailor SB 204 so that
it would end up with at |east some form of standard by which a
reviewi ng body such as the court or the |egislature m ght address
natural disasters in the future.

MR. SAXBY was sorry that he didn't have any suggestions. He
cautioned that any guidelines that were adopted should be very
general and broad. He said once a statute was adopted and a
| egal standard was set people would only need to prove that the
State had violated the statute to prove their negligence case.
He said that was called negligence pro se doctrine. Then t hey
woul d just have to prove damages. He said there was a big
difference between guidelines that were internal policy adopted
by an agency and guidelines set into statute by the |egislature.
He said it upped the ante when the legislature put them into
statute.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said there could be a situation where sonebody
called to ask responders to check on their famly and nobody

bothered to do so for two days. He said in that situation the
State could be sued. He asked if that was the kind of guideline
he was tal king about. He asked if there should be a statute

mandati ng that such a call should be responded to within 12 hours
or the departnment would be held |iable.

MR. SAXBY said any specific deadline put into statute would
inevitably lead to greater litigation risk for the State.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR understood his concerns. He said at sone point
the legislature had to consider whether it was a risk of
litigation to the State or a risk of loss to the people of the
state. He said that was a very delicate bal ance. He appreciated
M . Saxby’s advocacy for the State and the work he had done on SB
204. He said the commttee woul d appreciate suggestions on how
to make it a better piece of |egislation.

He asked Ms. Barbara Leiss to provide testinony.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 8, 2002



M5. BARBARA LEISS said she and her husband, M. Hlary Leiss
supported SB 204. She said it had been three years since the
Lazy Mountain fire, which started the process.

She was disturbed listening to the testinony saying |aw
enforcenment officers needed nore flexibility. She felt they had
all the flexibility in the world during the Lazy Muntain fire
and they abused it and m sused it.

She said another testifier said SB 204 would create a new right.
She said it was a legal right that had been taken away from the
peopl e. She said SB 204 was needed to protect the people. She
said lawabiding citizens wanted to nmke the |legislators
understand that they were supposed to enact |laws that were for
t he people and not against the people. She said w thout SB 204,
Al aska would be nothing nore than a police state with all the
authority and control of lives in the hands of public servants
hired and paid for by the people. She said SB 204 woul d pl ace
constitutional rights and control over their own lives back into

the hands of the people. She said they didn't wish to be
threatened or coerced by the police like they were during the
Lazy Mountain fire. She said they were honest citizens who

nerely wished to protect their honmes and famlies. She said the
existing |law went against human nature and the desire to save
| oved ones and prevent destruction to their homes. She said no
one should prevent them from performng that natural act. She
sai d power over others should never be given to the police or any
other public servants w thout also demanding accountability for
their actions and puni shment for inappropriate actions.

M5. LEISS said there was a young nman who was running hone to
protect his new wi fe and grandfather and save his farm She said
the police brought him to his knees, put a gun to his head,
handcuf fed him and dragged him off to jail. She said he had to
spend a lot of noney to defend hinmself and his natural born
rights.

She said Alaskans were survivors who were used to helping
t hensel ves and nei ghbors. She said Alaskans didn’'t need to be
coddl ed. She said this wasn’'t a conmmuni st regine. She want ed
el ected and hired public servants to understand and accept their
i ndi vi dual i ndependence. She said they were capable of
exerci sing common sense during a natural disaster

She said the Lazy Mountain conmunity worked with DPS, AST and DOF
regardi ng the guidelines. She said the guidelines were very well
witten and the comunity had accepted them She said the
gui del i nes had al so been presented to and accepted by surroundi ng
comunities. She said SB 204 would nerely back up those accepted
gui del i nes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 8, 2002



She said SB 204 needed to becone |aw because there could be a
change in the different heads of the agencies. She said two of
the individuals who helped to draw up the guidelines weren't with
t he agencies anynore. She said they needed to nake sure that if
there were a change in personnel the guidelines wouldn't be
changed and would remain the way the communities had accepted
t hem

She noted that the guidelines accounted for several possible
situations. She said there was a young nman who had been born and
rai sed in Lazy Mountain who was house sitting his father’s house.
He lived in Dutch Harbor so he had no other place to go. She
said he was prevented from going back to the house he was
wat ching for his father.

She said Alaska drivers’ |icenses didn't have a physical address
on them  She said anybody looking in their wallet would have a
hard tinme finding anything with their physical address on it.
She said the guidelines addressed that as well.

MS. LEISS said the conmunities had accepted the guidelines. She
wondered why the officials were so worried about SB 204 becom ng
| aw. She said people would litigate against the State for
everything and anything. She said the officials in charge of
forestry, fire and |law enforcenent had fallen down on the job
during the MIler’s Reach and Lazy Mountain fires. She said that
was why the people had risen up and wanted SB 204 to protect
t hem She expected the Judiciary Conmttee to pass SB 204 and
gi ve them back their rights.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there was anybody else who w shed to
testify on SB 204. There was nobody.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked why was there a problemw th putting the
guidelines in SB 204 into law if they would just back up the
gui delines that had been devel oped. He asked if the bill went
further than the guidelines.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said SB 204 would put into statute nmany of the
guidelines found in the field guide. He said the field guide was
an evol ving process that had been devel oped while working with
agencies and citizens. He said the State felt it should not be
put into | aw too qui ckly because changes m ght be needed.

He said it was his intention to nove SB 204 out of commttee. He
said the next commttee of referral was the Senate Resources
Comm ttee, which had a broader panel than the Senate Judiciary
Commi ttee. He hoped that before SB 204 |eft Resources, there
would be sone finalization of the guidelines that mght be
sufficient and incorporated into regulations. He said if that
didn’t happen, the Legislature would continue to work on and nove

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 8, 2002



SB 204.
3:10 p.m

SENATOR CONDERY nopved SB 204 out of committee with attached
fiscal note and individual recommendati ons.

There being no objection, SB 204 noved out of commttee wth
attached fiscal note and i ndividual recomendati ons.

#

The next order of business before the commttee was SB 278.

#SB 278

SB 278- TAKI NG PROPERTY BY EM NENT DQOVAI N

M5. KIM OGNI STY, Staff to Senator John Torgerson, sponsor of SB
278, said SB 278 was concerned wth emnent domain and
declaration to taking proceedings. She said the bill would
introduce a reasonable and diligent effort clause that attenpted
to place the condemor of the |and and the private |andholder in
an equal negotiating position. She said the bill did not try to
renove the authority of the State to take |and by em nent domain
or conplicate existing proceedings. She said current |aw did not
require the State to engage in a good-faith effort to negotiate
With private property owners and the State was free to nmake an
unreasonable offer or no offer at all. She said striving to
initiate comrunication from a nore equitable bargaining position
woul d pronote nore productive negotiations, facilitate dialogue
over reasonable concerns and encourage suggestions from al
parties involved. She said simlar statutes had been adopted in
at least 23 other states. She said the intent of SB 278 was to
reduce litigation by encouraging nore cases to be settled up
front, pronoting expedi ency in governnent actions.

She said Senator Torgerson yielded to the wi sdom of the Chairman
regardi ng any anendnents.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for the source of the proposed anmendnent
in the bill packet.

MS. OGNI STY sai d Seal aska suggested the anmendnent.
CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked M. Rick Kauzlarich to provide testinony.

MR. RICK KAUZLARICH, State Right-of-Way Chief, Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOIPF), said he had worked

for DOTPF for over 22 years as a right-of-way agent. He said
DOTPF acted in good faith to purchase property before proceeding
into condemati on. He said SB 278 would introduce additional

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 8, 2002



steps into an already conplicated process.

He said DOTPF followed a strict set of guidelines when acquiring
property. He said the guidelines were based on Article 1,
Section 18 of the Constitution of the State of Al aska, which
said, “Private property shall not be taken or danmaged for public
use w thout just conpensation.” He said that mrrored the
Constitution of the United States of Anerica. He said DOTPF al so
followed Title 3 of the Uniform Rel ocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisition Act (URARPA) of 1970, which required that
r eal property must be appraised before initiation of
negoti ati ons.

He said DOTPF required docunentation in each acquisition file
that the owner of the property or the owner’s representative was
given opportunity to acconmpany the appraiser during the
i nspection of the property. If the appraiser was unable to
contact the owner or the owner refused to sign a form
acknow edgi ng that opportunity that was docunented in the file as
wel | .

MR. KAUZLARICH said the 1987 anendnent to URARPA and DOTPF
defined an appraisal as, “A witten statenent independently and
inpartially prepared by a qualified appraiser setting forth an
opi nion of defined value of an adequately described property as
of a specific date supported by presentation and analysis of
rel evant market information.” He said DOTPF s staff was required
to conduct an appraisal review and establish an anpbunt for just
conpensation for each parcel to be acquired before an offer was
made to purchase property. This was called a reviewer’s
determ nati on. He said the determ nation could be no |ess than
the market value as outlined in the approved appraisal.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said he understood that a property could be
condemmed and the owner could pay for an appraisal to be brought
to DOTPF. He asked if M. Kauzlarich was talking about DOIPF
contracting with sonmeone to appraise the land and that person
giving the appraisal to DOTPF for review.

MR, KAUZLARI CH said DOTPF contracted with a fee appraiser or a
staff menber to do an appraisal that went through a review
process. A negotiator then contacted the property owner. He
said the property owner could also submt an appraisal for
consideration. That appraisal was reviewed and coul d becone part
of the negotiations. He said the federal governnment would
reinburse all costs associated with the acquisition if an
agreenent were reached between DOTPF and the property owner.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the owner’s appraisal would be paid for.
MR. KAUZLARI CH said the appraisal would be paid for if it was a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 8, 2002



legitimate cost in the negotiations.

SENATOR COADERY asked what types of resistance DOTPF received
from property owners. He also asked how nany tines the property
owner’s appraisal was included in negotiations.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said condemation appraising was a very specific

and invol ved process. He said a bank appraiser who did hone
appraisals mght not have the expertise necessary to do a
condemmati on appraisal. He said condemmation appraisal involved

| ooking at the value of the part to be acquired as part of the
whol e. He said sone appraisers didn't understand that concept.
He said many tinmes the property owners’ appraisals didn't fall
within DOTPF s published qguidelines. He said the review
appraisers worked with the appraisal and the negotiator and
points in that appraisal that were pertinent were considered. He
didn't think there had ever been a case where the negotiator
rejected an appraisal outright. He noted that the negotiator was
concerned with doing what was fair for the property owner in
accordance wth the Constitution of the State of Al aska.

SENATOR COWDERY said there was a downturn in property val ues
during the 1980s. He asked how DOTPF dealt with appraisals that
were | ess than the nortgage.

MR, KAUZLARICH said a lot of single-famly honmes were acquired
for the Eagle River Hi ghland Bridge project. He said a |ot of
the appraisals were less than the nortgages. He said DOTPF
wor ked with the Federal H ghway Adm nistration and the banks and
was able to buy the properties and put the people into honmes as
good as or better than their previous hones wthout |o0sing any
noney. He said DOTPF recogni zed those situations and worked with
property owners to resolve them

He said property owners could submt appraisals to DOTPF for
consi derati on. He said in cases where the property owner’s
submttal didn't adequately reflect the value of the part
acquired the review appraiser could outline the shortcom ngs of
the appraisal for the negotiator and the property owner. He said
the appraisal had to neet the sane requirements as DOITPF s
appraisal in order to be reinbursed by the federal governnent.
O herwi se the costs would cone out of State nonies.

He said right-of-way acquisition was critical in the tineline of
a project. He said part of the tinmeline for a project accounted
for contracting the necessary appraisal reports. He said SB 278
had the potential to delay projects while DOIPF waited for the
property owners’ appraisals. He said the property owner could
al ready have their expert review DOTPF s apprai sal and conme back
to DOTPF with any questions or problenms with the appraisal as
wel | as submtting their own appraisal.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 8, 2002



He said SB 278 would introduce additional steps to the process
rat her than enhancing and streanmlining the process. He believed
it had the potential to increase costs to DOTPF in additional
apprai sal expenditures and costs associated with the review and
adm ni stration of processing the property owners’ appraisals. He
said DOTPF staff was aware that all reasonable costs incurred by
the property owner should be considered in a settlenent.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the appraisers were |icensed. He asked
if those licenses had to be renewed.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said there were two | evels of appraisal |icensing.
The first was residential |icensing. The second was commerci al
| i censi ng. He said condemmation appraisal would be included in
commercial licensing. He said the licenses went through periodic
review and continuing education was required to nmintain
| i censes. He said DOTPF only contracted wth |icensed
appr ai sers.

SENATOR CONDERY said M. Kauzlarich nmentioned he had done
apprai sal work for the State. He asked if he was |icensed.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said he was not. He said at the tinme he was doing
apprai sal work, there was no |icense.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if review appraisers were picked randomy
or if the same few were used.

MR. KAUZLARICH said there were two review appraisers on staff.
He said there were situations where it was necessary to hire an
i ndependent appraiser to do a review or an analysis of an
apprai sal that had been subnmtted to DOTPF.

SENATOR CONDERY said he had worked with the Minicipality of
Anchorage and there were arbitrators hired by the Minicipality.
He said there was some concern that the sanme arbitrators were
hired over and over again and were conscious of who paid them and
m ght not be conpletely fair.

VR. KAUZLARICH said the appraisers wused by DOIPF were
i ndependent . He said the review appraisers and the independent
apprai sers didn’'t al ways agree.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said there were tw different types of
acquisitions. He said DOITPF could be putting in a new road and
need to acquire a strip of houses. He thought nost of the tine
DOTPF was w dening the right-of-way and taking a strip of I|and
from each property. He wondered how nmuch of the negotiations
involved taking a strip of land and what taking that strip of
| and woul d do to the rest of the property.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 8, 2002



He said constituents had contacted him during some big projects
in the North Pole area. He found DOTPF to be very reasonable.
He said in one instance an elderly couple was concerned because
the driveway in front of their house would no |onger be usable.
He said there was a driveway behind the house that the couple
couldn’t use because they couldn’'t negotiate the steps. He said
DOTPF purchased the entire property and resold it.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said that was one of the reasons he was concerned
with SB 278. He said the mpjority of the approximately 500
taki ngs each year were strip-takings. He said the appraiser had
to determne whether the taking would danage the rest of the
property or make it unusable for the owner. He said DOTPF woul d
offer to purchase the property in that situation. He didn't
think that nost bank apprai sers understood how to determ ne that
sort of loss in value and that was why a condemmation apprai ser
was so inportant.

He said the property owner mght not want the project to go
forth. He saw SB 278 as a way for these people to stop or delay
proj ects. He said property values could increase if a project
was del ayed |ong enough. He said that nade the cost of the
entire project increase.

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR asked M. Bill Satterburg to provide testinony
over the tel ephone. M. Satterburg was unavailable to testify
but had sent notes regarding SB 278.

He asked M. Bill Cunmm ngs to provide testinony.

MR, BILL CUMM NGS, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Transportation
Section, DO., said the State went through the steps M.
Kauzl arich outlined whether the project canme from State or
federal nonies. He said the federal government paid for the
maj ority of condemation cases. He said the procedures |laid out
in SB 278 would be inconsistent with AS 34.60.120, which set out
a very thorough acquisition policy for federally funded |and
acqui sitions.

He said SB 278 would add a lot of things that would have to be

proved in court proceedings. He said the State would have to
prove they had been diligent and reasonable in their
negoti ati ons. The State already had to prove they had the

authority to take the land and the necessity to use the land in a
public project and the taking had been done in a manner
consistent with the greatest public good and the |east private
injury. SB 278 would add another step in that litigation process
by requiring the State to prove that the manner in which they
treated the property owner was fair. If they hadn’'t done a
reasonable and diligent effort in their negotiations the taking

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 8, 2002



woul d be deni ed and they would have to start all over again.

MR CUMWM NGS said SB 278 didn't have an appreciation for the
process the State followed as mandated under AS 34.60. 120. He
said having a l|icensed appraiser cone in and do an appraisal
woul dn’t necessarily fix the situation because that appraisal
coul d be unaccept abl e.

He said there was a case in Ketchikan in which a I|icensed
apprai ser did an appraisal of a piece of property for DOTPF. The
negoti ati ons using that appraisal weren't successful. DOIPF had

anot her appraiser with designation fromthe Anerican Institute of
Real Estate Appraisers appraise the property and that appraisa
val ue was higher. He said the property owner had a |icensed
apprai ser appraise the property but that appraiser used a legally
incorrect nethod to cone up with an estinmate of just conpensation
and that appraisal was thrown out. The property owner then got a
second appraisal. He said they went to court and the jury didn’'t
believe either appraisal but the award was closer to DOIPF s
nunber than the property owner’s nunber. He said appraisers were
al ways going to differ on nunbers. In that case four different
| i censed appraisers cane up with four different nunbers.

He said it could take up to six nonths for the court to rule on a
notion. He said it mght not take six nonths to rule on whether
DOTPF had been reasonable and diligent but it would cause a del ay
nonet hel ess. He noted that tinme was noney.

He then addressed the follow ng proposed anendnment in the bill
packet | abel ed 22-LS139\ A. 1:

AMENDMENT

OFFERED | N THE SENATE
TO SB 278

Page 1, line 14, follow ng "negotiation":
Insert "as provided in (b) and (c) of this section”

Page 1, line 14, through page 2, line 5:

Delete "; for purposes of this paragraph, "reasonable and
diligent effort"” includes inviting the property owner to secure
an appraisal from a real estate appraiser certified under
AS 08.87, and either offering to purchase the property for its

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- April 8, 2002



full appraised value as determined by the property owner's
apprai ser plus the cost of the appraisal, or explaining to the
property owner why full appraised value is not being offered"

Page 2, following line 5:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 2. AS 09.55.270 is anmended by addi ng new subsections
to read:

(b) Bef ore taking property, a condemor shall invite
the property owner to, within a reasonable period of tine
set by the condemmor

(1) obtain an appraisal from a real estate
apprai ser certified under AS 08.87 and offer to sell the
property to the condemor for the appraised value plus the
cost of appraisal; or

(2) offer any alternative neans of satisfying the
publ i c purpose for which the property is sought.

(c) If a property owner offers to sell the property
under (b)(1) of this section within the reasonabl e period of
time set by the condemmor, the condemmor nust either accept
the offer, or reject the offer and provide a reasonable
explanation of the reasons for the rejection along with a
reasonabl e counter offer. If a condemmor invites the
property owner to nake an offer to sell the property as
described in (b) of this section and the property owner
fails to respond within a reasonable period of tinme, or if
the property owner rejects a reasonable counter offer nade
under this subsection, the property owner nmay comrence
em nent domai n proceedi ngs under AS 09.55.290."

Renunber the followi ng bill section accordingly.

Page 2, lines 23 - 24
Del ete "made a reasonable and diligent effort to acquire the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 8, 2002



property by negotiation"
Insert "conplied with AS 09.55.270(b) and (c)"

Page 2, line 30, through page 3, |line 2:
Delete all material and insert:

"(2) the plaintiff was required to make a reasonable and
diligent effort to acquire the property by negotiation under
AS 09.55.270(b) and (c) and the plaintiff failed to conply with
AS 09.55.270(b) and (c)."

MR. CUW NGS said the anendnent would renove sone of the nore
burdensone | anguage but the replacenent |anguage wasn’t much
better. He said subsection (c) in Sec. 2 would require the State
to accept a counter-offer or cone up with another reasonable
counter-offer. He said those changes would nmeke it a gentler
condemmation code but would increase the anount of possible
litigation. He said litigation on whether the State had been
reasonable could go on for days. He said nodern pre-trial
di scovery allowed for the disclosure of docunments going back to
the beginning of tine and depositions of everyone. He said that
woul d use a | ot of val uabl e resources.

He thought SB 278 addressed a problemthat didn't exist. He said
the State had a very fair and reasonable process under the
gui dance of AS 34.60.120. He thought the public was well served
by existing | aws.

CHAI RMVAN TAYLOR said M. Satterburg suggested a provision
requi ring DOTPF to prepay condemmation costs and fees.

MR, CUMM NGS said that was a bizarre suggestion. He said that
suggestion canme froma case M. Satterburg lost in Suprene Court
in which he wanted to do a drilling program on sone gravel |and
he thought held gold. DOTPF woul d have paid for gold-bearing
land if he had found gold. He said M. Satterburg filed a
petition for review that was turned down and he had been trying
to get that provision into | aw every tine he saw a chance.

TAPE 02-14, SIDE A
3:40 p.m

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked what a property owner had to do to protect
their interests against a condemati on.

VR, CUWM NGS said the property owner had a nunber of

responsibilities and assunptions nmade about their abilities. He
said the property owner could say there were other things that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 8, 2002



could have been done rather than take their |and. He said the
State had to consider viable options during the process |eading
up to the filing of the condemmati on.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the property owner had to hire an expert
to do that.

MR. CUMM NGS said that was correct. He said the property owner
woul d be reinbursed for reasonable costs if they were right.
They woul d have to bear the costs if they were w ong.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said the property owner would only be reinbursed
for a percentage of the costs.

MR CUM NGS said Cvil Rule 72 provided for reinbursenent of
actual and reasonable costs for expenses that were reasonably
necessary to prove the property owner’s case including
apprai sers, engineering experts, |awers and paral egal s.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said the state would have to pay for gol d-bearing
land if a property owner were willing to go out and spend $75, 000
to $100,000 to get their land drilled to determ ne whether or not
it was gold-bearing land and did find gold. He asked if the
State would also have to pay for the drilling and attorney’s
f ees.

MR. CUW NGS said that depended on the nature of the drilling
pr ogram They would be reinbursed for at l|east the prorated
portion of those drilling costs that were in the area affected by
t he taki ng.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said M. Satterburg also suggested that the
decision to appeal a master’s decision should be left solely to
the property owner. He said if a master’s award had been given

the State should pay it and not appeal the award. He asked if
existing law all owed both parties to appeal a master’s award.

MR CUVM NGS said the State had 10 days to appeal while the
property owner had 15 days to appeal. He said the State not
bei ng able to appeal would stand everything on its head. He said
there could be situations in which the master did a bad job. He
gave an exanple in which a naster had gone off on a tangent and a
awar ded approxi mately $200,000, which was a lot nore than the
State thought the taking was worth. The State appeal ed and the
case went to a jury trial and the jury agreed with the State. He
said each side should have the ability to appeal because the
ultimate arbiter was the jury, which was the voice of the
comunity and t he peopl e.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 8, 2002



CHAI RVAN TAYLOR t hought the State had to deposit the value of the
land into the registry of the court.

MR, CUMM NGS said that was correct. He said that despoit would
be available to the claimants of interest such as the property
owner, the city for the prorated portion of taxes and the
nort gage hol der

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if that noney could be withdrawn if there
was an appeal .

MR CUMM NGS said it could always be w t hdrawn.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the property owner could w thdraw that
noney and still bring suit for a higher val ue.

MR. CUMM NGS sai d yes.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the State was required to nake a deposit
for the master’s award.

MR CUMM NGS said the State was not required to do so if they
appeal ed the nmaster’s award. He said the property owner woul d be
entitled interest fromthe tine the case was filed on the extra
anount of conpensation if the master’s award was appeal ed and a
hi gher anmount was awarded. He said that was an i nducenent to get
as much noney on deposit as possible.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the property owner was only entitled
interest if the decision wasn’'t appealed to the Superior Court.

MR, CUMM NGS said the interest was charged on the anpunt that was
greater than the anount of the deposit from the date the State
filed until conpensation was finally rendered.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said the State could go through the process and
deposit $100,000. Then the case could go to a naster. He said
the master could say the property was worth $125, 000. He asked
if the State woul d have to deposit another $25, 000.

MR. CUMM NGS sai d no.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said the State could then appeal within 10 days.
He said the case could then go to Superior Court for a jury
trial.

MR. CUWM NGS said that was correct.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -27- April 8, 2002



CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said the jury could award $200,000. He asked if
the State had the right to appeal that decision

MR. CUWM NGS sai d yes.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said his point was that it could take a long tine
for the final decision to be nmade on the val ue. He said the
State would owe interest from the date the master’s award was
appeal ed.

MR CUMM NGS said the interest would be owed from the date the
deposit was nmade, not from the date the nmaster’s award was
appeal ed.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR said the interest was accrued on the noney that
was awar ded above and beyond the amount made in the deposit.

MR. CUW NGS said that was correct. He said condemmation cases
were major interferences with peoples’ lives and the State didn't
really want to condemm property if it wasn't necessary. He said
the State tried to resolve issues w thout extensive proceedings.
He said only exceptional cases went to jury trial. He said
comments and concerns |ike M. Satterburg’s were very broad and
went far beyond what SB 278 was trying to do to the em nent
domai n code.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if M. Cummings had any further testinony
to provide. He did not.

MR. RON WOLFE, Corporate Forester, Seal aska Corporation, said SB
278 would require the State to nmake a reasonable and diligent
effort to negotiate the purchase of real property froma private
property owner before condemming the property. He said Seal aska
had gone through the l|and acquisition process tw ce when the
State required Sealaska land for an airport expansion and a
hi ghway realignnment and upgrade. He said Seal aska and the State
were able to negotiate equitable | and exchanges in a manner that
prevented a hostile em nent donmain process. He said the process
was awkward both tines because the State had no requirenent to
negotiate with the property owner and the rules for negotiation
were not cl ear.

MR. WOLFE said SB 278 would correct the situation. He said the
bill would require fair and equitable treatnment while carrying
out the em nent domain process. He said the result would be that
the property owner would feel they had been treated fairly and
openly by the State and would be less likely to bring forth

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 28- April 8, 2002



litigation. He said the court would also be less likely to find
that a property owner was not treated fairly. He said Seal aska
t hought these changes would be positive for the State as well as
property owners.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any questions for M. Wlfe.
There were none.

VR. JON  TI LLI NGHAST, i ndependent | egal counsel , Seal aska
Corporation, said at least 23 other states had adopted |aws
simlar to SB 278. He said the bill was based on a provision of

the nodel em nent domain code by the Comm ssion on Mdel State
Laws, which was put together by state legislators to reflect
their judgnment on the best public policy in issues |ike em nent
domai n.

He said the scholars on em nent domain such as the author of
Nichols on Em nent Domain felt the provisions deterred
litigation. He said SB 278 would give the property owner a
bargaining chip to use at the table because the State woul d have
a legal requirement to be reasonable with them He said this
woul d neke the property owner join the process as nore of an
equal rather than a victim

He said AS 34.60.120 was basically a re-codification of federa
policy, which required the State to nake every reasonable effort
to acquire property by negotiation before condemming it when
using federal nonies. He said SB 278 woul d make that requirenent
enforceabl e because the property owner could use that as a
defense to the condemati on

He then addressed the proposed anendnent. He said nost states
with simlar emnent domain |aws didn’t define what the State had
to do to be reasonable and diligent in trying to negotiate a
purchase. He said early in the drafting of SB 278, an exanpl e of
what mght entail reasonable and diligent effort was suggested
and placed in the bill as a safe harbor. This was not intended
to be the only way the State could be reasonable and diligent,
but one of the many things the State could do. He said the
problem with using an exanple was that people would begin to
focus on the exanple. He said they struggled to conme up with a
better exanple. He said they had cone to the conclusion that the
majority of states had done the right thing by not providing an
exanpl e. Seal aska suggested the conmttee do the sane thing.

MR, TILLI NGHAST proposed a different anmendnent to end paragraph

(4) on page 1 at line 14 with the word “negotiation” and del eting
the text after that up through and including line 5 on page 2.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -29- April 8, 2002



He said SB 278 would then read virtually identical to the node
em nent donai n code.

3:58 p.m
MR, TILLINGHAST said the proposed anendnent (marked 22-

LS1399\A. 1) would renove the existing exanple from SB 278 and
insert a new exanpl e. He was concerned that this exanple would

have the sane problens. He said the exanple in the proposed
anendnent was probably better than the exanple in the existing
bill. He said the exanple in the proposed anmendnent was worded

in such a way that it would no | onger be an exanpl e but sonething
the State would be required to do in every case.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if the |language regarding incapacity
cleared up difficulties that had been encountered.

MR. TILLI NGHAST said that clause, which would release the State
fromthe requirenent to negotiate with a property owner if they
couldn’t be found or were not |egally capable of negotiating, was
simlar to alnost all other states’ em nent domai n code.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked if there were any further questions for M.
Tillinghast. There were none. He asked if there was anyone el se
who wi shed to testify on SB 278. There was nobody.

He noved Anendnent 1 to place a period after the word
“negotiation” on page 1 line 14 and delete the follow ng | anguage
through line 5 on page 2.

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR shared M. Cummngs’ and M. Tillinghast’'s
concerns about placing an exanple in statute because the exanple
woul d becone a nmandated opportunity for litigation. He asked if
M. Cumm ngs wi shed to provide further testinony.

MR CUMM NGS said the difficulty with putting SB 278 in statute
was that there would still be litigation whether or not the State
was reasonable and diligent in its negotiations. He said SB 278
woul d sinply provide a nmechanism to delay projects, which would
cost the State noney. He said it wouldn’t result in changing the
way the State did business.

MR. CUMM NGS thought many people wanted the State to be in the
busi ness of trading |and. He said SB 278 wouldn’t conpel the
State to trade land with property owners. He said DOIPF already
had the ability to purchase land for the purposes of exchange.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 30- April 8, 2002



He said there would need to be provisions regardi ng what woul d
trigger a land trade or how | and trades should work if the State
were going to do nore |and trades.

He said the main argunent for SB 278 was that it would give
property owners a way to defend thenselves. He said the process
DOTPF used was immnently fair. He felt SB 278 would only del ay
proj ects.

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR asked if it was correct that 23 other states had
simlar statutes.

MR. CUMM NGS said he wouldn’t be surprised. He said nost states’
em nent domain codes weren't as liberal as Al aska s because of
the way interest was paid and costs and fees were reinbursed.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked what percentage of property takings each
year ended up in sone formof litigation.

MR. CUWM NGS sai d between 2% and 5%

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said 95% to 98% of the tinme DOIPF and the
property owner were able to conme to sone sort of reasonable
agr eenent .

MR. CUWM NGS said that was correct. He said the biggest problem
the State faced was the lack of time available to pull everything
t oget her.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if SB 278 would change the process in
whi ch DOTPF appraised the land and went to the property owners
Wi th proposals.

MR CUW NGS said the State would still appraise everything and
make offers to the property owners. He said the State hired
sonmeone who was conpetent to do the work and had famliarity with
the engineering principles involved. He said the appraiser

needed to be able to predict the inpact of the project on the
physi cal features of the property. The State then invited the
property owner to nake a counter offer.

SENATOR THERRI AULT sai d perhaps there were situations that he was
not aware of but he felt that the existing process worked well
for the nost part. He wondered what would be nodified in the
process if SB 278 passed that woul d cause autonmatic del ay.

MR CUMNGS said SB 278 would allow people to answer a
condemnati on conplaint by saying they didn't think the State was

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -31- April 8, 2002



reasonable and diligent in its negotiations. He said they could
al ready question the authority and necessity for the taking and
whet her it was acconplished consistent with the greatest public
good and the least private injury. He said these things were
only tangentially related to the process and could delay
proj ects. He said all of those things would have to be proved
before construction got started. He said the State currently
condemmed the property and did a quick-take. He said if the
property owner was entitled to extra noney, that would be
resolved after construction had been started. He said SB 278
woul d require everything to be settled before construction was
started.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked what happened when a property owner had
agreed to a strip taking and | ater discovered that their driveway
was at a 16% gr ade.

MR CUVW NGS said that depended on how the change in grade
occurred. The State would give themnore noney if the change was
not part of the original design when they signed the agreenent.
However, the property owner would be stuck with it if the change
had been expl ained during the negotiations.

SENATOR COADERY thought npst property owners weren't aware of
what a 16% grade neant in their driveway until after they saw it
because they weren’t engi neers.

MR, CUMM NGS said the State brought the right-of-way plans and
design plans with them when they negotiated a settlenent. He
said right-of-way plans showed each taking in the project and the
property owner’s taking. The design plans showed the grade of
the centerlines and what the slopes would be |ike.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if they showed the grade of the driveway
before and after the project.

MR. CUWMM NGS sai d they did.
SENATOR CONDERY said he didn't think so.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said Senator Cowdery had nentioned working with
the Municipality of Anchorage on sone projects. He said DOTPF
participated in a project in Anchorage by overseeing the
rel ocation efforts and the review appraisal efforts. He said the
Municipality of Anchorage enployees were perhaps not as
sophi sticated as DOTPF enployees in doing the negotiations and
there were sonme comruni cati on probl ens.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -32- April 8, 2002



He said the property owner was presented with a set of cross-
sections that showed the existing grade of the land as well as
the resultant grade. He said the right-of-way agent and the
property owner discussed what woul d happen to the property.

SENATOR COWDERY asked how many property owners would recognize
and understand what a change of grade would do to their property.

MR. KAUZLARI CH said not very many. He said part of the right-of-
way agent’s job was to ensure that the property owner understood.
He said if the property owner cane back after the fact and said
they had no idea this would happen to their property, DOTPF woul d
take another | ook at it.

CHAl RMAN TAYLOR asked if there was anybody else who w shed to
testify on SB 278. There was nobody.

SENATOR COADERY noved CSSB 278(JUD) out of committee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, CSSB 278(JUD) noved out of committee
with attached fiscal note and i ndivi dual reconmmendati ons.

#

The final order of business before the commttee was SB 357.

#SB 357

SB 357- STATE LAND SALE REQUI REMENTS

4:13 p. m

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said SB 357 was an act relating to the disposa
of State land and interest in State land and providing for an

effective date. He said the State of Al aska received 105 million
acres of land through the statehood act. He said SB 357 would
require DNR to make State |and available for sale. The | and

woul d be available in adequate parts and avail able for over-the-
counter sales. He said SB 357 would also provide for open entry
| ands, agricultural |ands and purchase by install nents.

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said SB 357 would provide for the utilization of
muni ci pal zoning surveys to be paid for by the person who was
acquiring the property. He said DNR would be required to place a
nonunent at | east every five mles for each parcel

He noted the ideas behind SB 357 had been around for sone tine
and had been discussed significantly during the two previous

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 33- April 8, 2002



sessions of the legislature.

SENATOR CONDERY said there had always been the argunent that if
the |l and were opened up to the people it would cost the State a
| ot of noney. He said there was sone discussion earlier about
wai vers. He asked if waivers were | egal

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR said waivers could be put in the |law so that the
State wouldn’t be required to provide school services. He said
that woul d burden the land with that process. He said SB 357 was
fairly conprehensive in trying to renove as many of the State’s
obl i gati ons as possi bl e.

He asked M. Dick Mylius to provide testinony.

MR DICK MYLIUS, Resource Assessnent & Developnent Manager,
D vision of Mning, Land And Water, DNR, said DNR recogni zed that
getting land into private ownership was one of the fundanental
responsibilities of DNR as set out in Article 8 of the
Constitution of the State of Alaska. He said SB 357 would nodify
sone of the existing |and di sposal statutes and establish two new
| and di sposal prograns. He said the first new program would
include a short-term offering of 50,000 acres of subdivisions
that would be offered through three different first-come first-
serve disposals during the first year and a half of the program
The second program would be a long-term open entry program
of fering 200,000 acres per year. He said that new program woul d
be a nore aggressive land-offering program than the State had
ever offered and would require a significant increase in the |and
sal es budget.

He said DNR supported sone of the proposed changes to existing
prograns. He said Sec. 3 of SB 357 would change existing | aw so
that when a person defaulted on a lottery |and-sale contract the
parcel could be imediately offered for sale over-the-counter
He said DNR supported that change. Sec. 4 would change existing
law so that when a purchaser in an auction failed to sign a
contract of sale or defaulted on a contract of sale DNR could
offer that parcel for sale over-the-counter. DNR also supported
t hat change. He said DNR al so supported Sec. 5, which would
allow DNR to require the purchaser to appraise and survey the
parcel and pay for those costs. He said DNR had been able to do
this through existing regulations but the statute would clarify
their authority.

MR. MYLIUS said DNR did not support Sec. 6, which would create
two new | and di sposal prograns. He said this was partly because
DNR had existing statutes that provided adequate and progressive
prograns for the sale of State land into private ownership. He
said DNR s existing progranms included the subdivision sales

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 34- April 8, 2002



program the renote recreational cabin programand re-offering of
agricultural tracts. He said DNR offered nearly 50,000 acres for
sale in FY 02 and FY 03 under the existing prograns. He said
DNR s existing budget allowed them to offer between 2,500 and
5,000 acres of new land per Vyear. He said DNR was also
transferring over 20,000 acres per year to nunicipalities, many
of which also had | and sal e prograns.

He said new | and sale prograns were not needed to increase |and
sales. DNR suggested that the nost efficient way to i ncrease the
anount of State |and being offered would be to increase funding
for existing prograns.

He said DNR had several concerns with the new prograns. DNR felt
the prograns would not be workable because they would have
unrealistic deadlines and contai ned unmanageabl e and potentially
unconstitutional procedures for awarding | and. He said the new
prograns would fail to provide for the public interest.

He said SB 357 contained conflicting provisions regardi ng surveys
in conpliance with nunicipal platting requirenents. He said the
provi sions that would allow individual appraisals and surveys for
parcels of land would result in hundreds of appraisals and
surveys that would overwhel m borough platting boards and staff
and DNR s appraisal and survey staff. He said the existing
prograns allowed DNR to consolidate the reviews with the boroughs
internally, which was a nmuch nore efficient way of doing
busi ness.

He said the proposed AS 38.14.010 would allow DNR to sell |and
that was unclassified or classified as forestry, agricultural,
settlenment and recreational. Exi sting prograns allowed DNR to
sell agricultural and settlenent |lands. He said DNR didn't fee
that forest or recreational |ands should be considered for sale
because the public supported retaining these types of land in
State ownership. He said past experience had shown that sal e of
ti mber Iands would automatically create a | arge nunber of people
opposed to tinber harvest in their area. He said subsection (c)
of the proposed AS 38.14.010 on page 4 of SB 357 would exenpt
| and sales from the provisions of AS 38.04 and AS 38.05, which
protected public access, public resources of the |and and access
to subsurface resources and had requirenents dealing wth
retaining State ownership of m nerals.

MR. MYLIUS said the proposed 38.14.040, beginning on page 5,
woul d require purchasers to appear in person in order to acquire
a parcel. He said this was simlar to a previous requirenent
t hat had been found unconstitutional by the courts.

He said the budget and revenue projections reflected in the
fiscal note were very rough and would need to be refined as SB

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 35- April 8, 2002



357 noved through the process and into the Senate Finance
Comm ttee. He said the cost, revenues and general summary were
those that were used in 2000 when the existing |and disposal
prograns were being considered in SB 283.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how much | and DNR had sold to the public in
t he previous eight years.

MR. MYLIUS said there wasn't really a | and di sposal program unti
the previous two years. He said over the previous two years, DNR
of fered approxi mately 25,000 acres. He said DNR was proposing to
of fer another 20,000 acres, which were nostly parcels that were
previ ously subdivided and canme back to DNR or were never sold.
He said approximtely 2,400 parcels had been offered that fiscal
year and 350 of those had been sol d.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how much defaul ted property had been resold
to the public.

MR MYLIUS said it was difficult to say because |and that had
been defaulted on was lunmped in with other types of offerings.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for the |location of the [|anguage
requi ring personal appearance in order to purchase | and.

MR, MYLIUS said that was in the proposed Sec. 38.14.040 begi nni ng
on page 5. The actual |anguage was in lines 1-3 on page 6. He
said that provision was very simlar to a previous requirenent
that intended to give local residents a preference in |and sal es.
He said sone people who couldn’'t attend a |and sale because it
was held during the week filed suit and it was determ ned that
| and had to be sold with equal access to all Al askans.

SENATOR COWDERY said that sane subsection said, “The sale price

of the land shall be the fair market value of the land as
determned by an appraiser selected from a list of appraisers
approved by the department under AS 38.14.160.” He asked who

t hose apprai sers woul d be.

MR. MYLIUS said DNR had a list of appraisers who were |icensed
and certified to appraise State | ands and wanted to do so.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if the appraisers | ooked at property val ues
in the vicinity when they did their appraisals.

MR, MYLIUS said they did.
CHAI RVAN TAYLOR asked how to nodify Sec. 38.14.040 to bring it

into conpliance wth the «court’s determination regarding
appearing in person in order to purchase | and.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 36- April 8, 2002



MR. MYLIUS said he would del ete the | anguage regardi ng appearing
i n person.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked if he would place a period after “chapter”
on page 6, line 1.

MR. MYLIUS said he would. He said there were several ways to do
|l and sales wthout requiring the personal appearance of the
pur chaser. The first was to do sealed bid options. He said
there were also lotteries if nore than one person wanted a
parcel. He said there was also the option of an outcry auction
in which people could have an agent present. He said outcry
auctions were inefficient because each parcel needed an
i ndi vi dual auction.

TAPE 02-14, SIDE B

CHAI RVAN TAYLOR noved Anmendnent 1 placing a period after the word
“chapter” on page 6, line 1 and deleting “who appears in person
to purchase the land at the site or sites designated by the
departnment for the sale of land” in lines 1 through 3. He said
that would hopefully bring that into conpliance wth the
constitutional concerns raised by M. Wlius.

There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CHAI RMAN TAYLOR asked if there was anybody else who w shed to
testify on SB 357. There was nobody.

SENATOR COADERY noved CSSB 357(JUD) out of comittee wth
attached fiscal note and individual recomendati ons.

There being no objection, CSSB 357(JUD) noved out of committee
with attached fiscal note and i ndividual reconmendati ons.
#

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the Senate
Judiciary Commttee neeting was adjourned at 4:30 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -37- April 8, 2002



